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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The Jackson County Courthouse at Newport, constructed in 1892, is a 
three-storey, Victorian, red-brick structure, resting upon a rusti­
cated-stone foundation. Architecturally the structure is significant 
because it represents a finely preserved example of a typical govern­
mental building around the turn of the century. 

The square clock tower, located atop the protruding center bay of the 
facade, is the most distinguishing architectural feature. The first 
floor of the three-storey tower features an arched entrance. The 
massive building stones and short supportive columns give the entrance 
a heavy, Romanesque appearance. Each of the steps within the umbrage 
leading to the wide double doors is inscribed "Jackson County 
Courthouse-1892." Marbled tile extends halfway up the wall surface 
of the umbrage while the remainder is bricked. Sidelites and a large 
transom with vertical mullions separating the transom into five 
segments decorate the double, glass entrance doors. Double, rectan­
gular windows on the second storey of the bay are topped with a 
decorative lintel. The third storey has small, plain, rectangular 
windows, each topped by a pair of arched, louvered windows. The 
clock tower rises from the corbelling of the bay. Each elevation of 
the tower is identical, having a round,louvered window, a set of 
three windows and a clock. The tower has square piers at each corner 
and a statue on top. From the high hipped roof of the main body of the 
courthouse rises a tower on each of the four corners. The towers on 
the southeast and northwest elevations are pyramidal in shape. The 
tower on the southwest elevation has a conical-shaped roof. The 
remaining tower on the northeast elevation has a hipped roof. The 
windows on all three stories of the courthouse are six-over-six 
sash. Graduated in size, the tallest windows are on the first floor. 

Although the facade of the building, which faces south, has the main 
entrance, the doorway most frequently used as an entrance is on the 
west elevation. This has evolved primarily because the front of the 
building now faces Highway 67, the major four-lane highway through 
Newport, and the parking facilities are on the west. 

A protruding central bay is centered on the west elevatfon. Double­
doors each with three lites are topped by an inscribed stone plaque 
that reads, "Jackson County Courthouse - Erected 1892, Remodeled 
1939." Atop the bay is a pediment. Within the pediment is an round­
topped, louvered window. 

On the north elevation is the only addition to the building. A three­
storey flat-roofed structure with decorative frieze was added during 
the remodeling process of 1939. This houses the county health 
facilities. 
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In 1902 a windstorm damaged the original clock tower and the present tower 
was built by Jack Herron in 1903. The "Hour Strike Tower Clock" which is 
still operational was in~talled in 1904. 

The interior of the courthouse appears basically unaltered. All rooms 
retain their original dimensions and woodwork, but the tile floors are 
not original and the walls, probably once plastered, have been sheetrocked. 
Occupying the first floor are the county clerk's office, county judge's 
office, and tax collector's office. On the second floor are the state 
revenue and motor vehicle office, prosecuting attorney's office, witness 
room, jury room and the courtroom. The courtroom has very attractive 
paneled woodwork in the jury box and on the witness stand. The wainscotting 
is also paneled. On the third floor are the veteran's services and voter 
registration offices. 

The Jackson County Courthouse is one of the state's oldest. When constructed 
in 1892, it was located in the center of the commercial and business district 
of Newport. Since then the growth pattern of Newport has somewhat 
decentralized the location of the courthouse, but it is still located in 
the heart of downtown Newport. 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

The largest number of architecturally significant public buildings in 
Arkansas are the courthouses scattered over the state's seventy-five 
counties. A structural symbol of American government, the county 
courthouse serves as the center of local political activity. Often 
the largest and most costly building in the county, the courthouse is 
almost always a source of pride to the citizens who financed and make 
use of its facilities. 

Jackson County was formed in 1829 from the southern part of Lawrence 
County. The town of Litchfield served as county seat from 1831 until 
1839 when the seat of justice was moved to Elizabeth. Neither of the 
communities is still existent. In 1852 Augusta became the county , seat, 
but when Augusta became a part of Woodruff County in 1854, Jacksonport 
was selected to be the county seat. 

Jacksonport developed as the first sizable population center ofthe 
county, primarily due to its strategic location on the White River. 
The White River was the most importartt transportation ·system 'in· ·north­
central Arkansas at the time. Ironically, the same element responsible 
for Jacksonport Is growth, transportation in general I ·'also waS respon­
sible for its eventual demise. 

By the 1870's the railroad emerged as one of the most important stimuli 
to the growth of cities in Arkansas. In 1873 the Cairo and Fulton 
Railroad approached the city of Jacksonport with a proposal to locate 
the major station between Little Rock and Poplar Bluff, Missouri, there 
if the city would invest the. initial sum of $25,000 to cover the cost 
of the project. The city officials wanted the train station but did 
not want the expense incurred. 

Newport was established as the principal station in 1873, and the 
town experienced its own period of growth. By 1880 Newport had 
surpassed Jacksonport in population and the issue of moving the 
courthouse from Jacksonport to Newport was first seriousiy considered. 
The residents of the county were slow to approve the removal to 
Newport, however, because of the almost new brick courthouse located 
at Jacksonport. 
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Three subsequent elections finally removed the courthouse to Newport. 
Elections in 1882 and 1886 failed by only small margins, but they 
served to convince the people of Newport that victory would be 
forthcoming . The 1891 election was overwhelming in favor of removal, 
by a margin 2,082 to 206. Even the people of Jacksonport voted in 
favor of removal by a margin of 122 to 35. 

In 1892 work began on the courthouse at Newport. No record is avail­
able concerning the architect, but the plans for the courthouse were 
patterned after the Ouachita County Courthouse at Camden. The two 
buildings, though not identical bore a remarkable resemblance. The 
Ouachita County Courthouse was replaced in 1933 with a more modern 
one. The cost of the Jackson County Courthouse totaled $44,196. 

In 1939 the citizens of Jackson County voted to remodel the courthouse. 
An addition was made to the west elevation; it now houses the county 
health services. General repairs to the interior were also made at 
this time, but the remodeling did not produce any drastic changes in 
the appearance of the interior of the building. 

The significance of the Jackson County Courthouse at Newport is both 
architectural and historic. One of the most attractive as well as 
one of the oldest of the courthouses, it is one of the most impressive 
public buildings in Jackson County. The courthouse also reflects the 
growth of Newport and demise of Jacksonport, as an outgrowth of 
the transportation growth-patterns in the county. Transportation 
patterns probably played the single most important role in the early 
devel~pment of the county. Though the ~ackson Count~ Cqurthouse is 
not s1tuated on a courthouse square, it still occupies a central 
position in the business and commercial section of the older downtown 
area of Newport. 
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July 12, 1976 

Dr. William Murtagh 
Keeper of the National Register 
National Park Service - National Register 
Department of the Interior 
Washington, D. c. 20240 

Dear Dr. Murtagh: 

Enclosed are National Register nominations for 
properties: 

MacArthur Park Historic District 
Jackson County Courthouse 

These nominations have been approved by majority vote of the State 
Review Committee. 

If you have any questions concerning these nominations please 
contact our office. 

AB:cm 

Enclosures 

A DIVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF ARKANSAS NATURAL lt CULTURAL HERITAGE 
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